
 

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

MIAMI DIVISION

CIVIL ACTION NO.                                                                

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, )
)

            Plaintiff, )    
)

                        v. )
)

MILAGROS ESPINAL, )
)

            Defendant. )

COMPLAINT FOR PERMANENT INJUNCTION

Plaintiff, the United States of America files this complaint for permanent injunction and

alleges as follows:

1. This is a civil action brought by the United States of America under Sections

7402(a), 7407 and 7408 of the Internal Revenue Code (26 U.S.C.).

2. The United States brings this complaint to permanently enjoin Milagros Espinal

and any persons in active concert or participation with her from direction or indirectly:

a. Preparing, filing or assisting in the preparation or filing of any federal
income tax return for any other person or entity; 

b. Providing any tax advice or services for compensation, including
preparing or filing returns, providing consultative services, or representing
customers;

c. Engaging in conduct subject to penalty under 26 U.S.C. §§ 6694, 6695 or
6701, including preparing or filing a return or claim for refund that
includes an unreasonable position, preparing or filing a return or claim and
failing to sign it or furnish an identifying number, or preparing or filing a
return or claim for refund that willfully or recklessly understates a tax
liability; 
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d. Engaging in any conduct that interferes with the proper administration and
enforcement of the internal revenue laws through the preparation or filing
of false tax returns; or

e. Engaging in any other conduct subject to any penalty under the Internal
Revenue Code.

3. An injunction is warranted based on defendant Milagros Espinal’s continual and

repeated violation of the internal revenue laws, including engaging in conduct subject to penalty

under 26 U.S.C. §§ 6701, 6694 and 6695.

AUTHORIZATION

4. This action has been authorized by the Chief Counsel of the Internal Revenue

Service, a delegate of the Secretary of the Treasury, and commenced at the direction of the

Attorney General of the United States, pursuant to the provisions of 26 U.S.C. §§ 7402, 7407 

and 7408. 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

5. This Court has jurisdiction over this action pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1340 and

1345, and 26 U.S.C. § 7402.   

6. Venue is proper in this Court pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1391 and 1396, and 

26 U.S.C. § 7407 because defendant resides in and has her principle place of business within this

district.   

DEFENDANT

7. Defendant Milagros Espinal resides in Hialeah, Florida, which is within this

district. 
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8. Espinal is a paid tax return preparer who prepares tax returns for customers

residing in Miami-Dade County, Florida.  Espinal operates her business out of her home and

relies on word-of-mouth to attract clients.  Most of her clients reside in Hialeah, Florida, are

primarily Spanish speaking, and do not speak English fluently.  Espinal’s clients are typically

wage-earners earning $25,000 to $75,000 per year.  She typically charges a cash fee between

about $20 and 40 per return.

9. Espinal was born in the Dominican Republic, and she earned a degree in

accounting from St. Thomas University in Miami in or around 1990.  Espinal advised a Revenue

Agent from the IRS that she learned to prepare income tax returns from a Volunteer Income Tax

Assistance (VITA) course in 2000.  She began preparing returns for family and friends shortly

thereafter. 

10. Espinal prepared approximately 2000 tax returns between 2000 and 2007.  On

October 5, 2007, the IRS commenced an investigation of returns prepared by Espinal.  Initially,

eighty-two returns prepared by Espinal were examined.  Of that group, eighty returns, or 97% of

the examined returns, resulted in deficiencies.  

11. The returns examined by the IRS show that Espinal routinely fabricates itemized

deductions reported on her clients’ Schedules A (Form 1040), employing several different

schemes.  By fabricating itemized deductions on a client’s Schedule A, Espinal is able to reduce

a client’s taxable income, which results in a reduced liability.  Because these clients often had

taxes withheld from their paychecks, their reduced liability often results in a higher refund.  
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FABRICATION OR INFLATION OF DEDUCTIONS

12. Since at least 2004, Espinal has engaged in a fraudulent tax preparation scheme by

overstating and fabricating deductions on her clients’ tax returns in order to reduce her clients’

tax liabilities or increase their refunds.

13. Espinal prepares her clients’ returns with the goal of generating the largest

possible refund, through fabricated or overstated deductions reported on her customers’

Schedules A (Form 1040) and improper and/or false credits reported on their tax returns. 

14. During the investigation of returns Espinal prepared, her clients told the Revenue

Agent conducting the exam that Espinal intentionally understated their liabilities and failed to

review the documentation or records necessary to substantiate deductions or claimed credits.  In

fact, it appears that Espinal initiated the abusive returns, as clients represented that Espinal either

told them what “expenses” to put on their interview sheets or had them sign blank interview

sheets. And while Espinal instigated the abuse by inventing phony deductions, she failed to sign

the returns she prepared or include her tax identification number, as required, in order to shield

her fraudulent practices. 

15. A review of 82 tax returns prepared by defendant for the 2005, 2006 and 2007 tax

years reveal a pattern of claiming false or overstated deductions, that includes:

a. false or overstated deductions for medical expenses; 

b. false or overstated deductions for charitable contributions;

c. false or overstated deductions for employee business expenses; and

d. improperly claiming tax credits for ineligible taxpayers.
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Though the amounts of these deductions varied from return to return, the majority of the returns

examined claimed the same fabricated deductions.

16. Upon information and belief, the majority of Espinal’s clients are unaware of the

misrepresentations and material fabrications made on their respective tax returns by Espinal.  For

example

a. Espinal prepared the 2005 and 2006 tax returns for Gil and Magaly
Betancourt, a couple living in Miami, Florida.  Rather than taking the
standard deduction, Espinal prepared a “Schedule A” for itemized
deductions.  Medical expenses, charitable gifts, unreimbursed employee
expenses and job expenses for “uniform” and “tools” were reported.  No
supporting documents were attached.  At an interview with the IRS, Mr.
Betancourt testified that they did not incur medical expenses, did not make
charitable contributions, and did not incur employee business expenses. 
He further submitted a letter from his employer stating that his employer
has a reimbursement policy.  In total, itemized deductions of $46,066 were
erroneously claimed for 2005 and $49,272 in itemized deductions were
erroneously claimed for 2006.  The erroneously claimed deductions
reduced the couple’s taxable income and resulted in higher tax refunds
than allowable.  In total, the couple received refunds totaling $13,274 as a
result of the improper deductions Espinal claimed on their 2005 and 2006
returns.  The couple testified that they paid Espinal in cash to prepare their
returns and relied on Espinal to fill them out properly.  Espinal never
asked them for supporting documentation for the itemized deductions and
did not explain the returns to them. 

b. Likewise, Espinal prepared the 2005 and 2006 tax returns for Sergio
Rojas, of Miami, Florida.  Rather than taking the standard deduction,
Espinal prepared a “Schedule A” for itemized deductions.  Medical
expenses, charitable gifts, unreimbursed employee expenses and job
expenses for “uniform” and “tools” were reported.  No supporting
documents were attached.  At an interview with the IRS, Rojas testified
that he did not incur medical expenses, did not make charitable
contributions, and that his employer pays all his job expenses and supplies
all tools and necessary gear for the job.  In total, false itemized deductions
of $30,137 were claimed for 2005 and $26,026 were claimed for 2006. 
These false deductions reduced Rojas’ stated overall taxable income and
resulted in tax underpayments totaling $6,598 for 2005 and 2006.
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c. Similarly, Espinal prepared the 2005 tax return for Angie C. Lewis, a
woman living in Coral Gables, Florida.  Lewis found out about Espinal
from a friend, and paid her $40 to prepare the return.  As in the other
cases, rather than taking the standard deduction, Espinal prepared a
“Schedule A” for itemized deductions.  Charitable gifts, unreimbursed
employee expenses and job expenses for “uniform” and “tools” were
reported.  No supporting documents were attached.  At an interview with
the IRS, Lewis testified that she did not incur unreimbursed employee
expenses, and her employer reimbursed her for all employee expenses. 
She also failed to substantiate the claimed charitable contributions.  Lewis
stated that Espinal told her that “they give you the #’s to enter” on the tax
return and assured that the return was done properly.  In total, she claimed
fabricated deductions of $36,320 in 2005, resulting in a tax refund of
$6,366.  In reality, she only overpaid her 2005 taxes by $99.  Based on the
misrepresentations made by Espinal on Schedule A of the tax return, the
IRS erroneously refunded $6,267 to Lewis.

d. Espinal also prepared the 2005 and 2006 tax returns for Aracely Velez, of
Miami, Florida.  Velez was referred to Espinal from someone else, and
also paid Espinal $40 for tax return preparation.  Though Velez is single,
her filing status was listed as “head of household” and she took the “head
of household” standard deduction of $7,500, rather than the “single”
standard deduction of $5,000.  Espinal also listed both Velez’s children as
dependents and claimed an Earned Income Credit and child tax credit,
even though Velez lives with the children’s father, who pays for all
household expenses and claimed the children as dependents. 

  
FAILURE TO DISCLOSE NAME AND IDENTIFYING NUMBER

17. Espinal also failed to accurately disclose her name and social security number or

preparer’s identification number on many of the returns that she prepared.  As an income tax

return preparer, Espinal is required to put her name and social security number (or alternatively a

unique preparer identification number, called a “PTIN”) on each return so as to accurately

identify her as the preparer of the return.  For example: while Espinal included her name on the

Betancourts’ 2005 return, she did not include her preparer identification number or social

security number, and did not include her name or identifying number on their 2006 return.
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Espinal did not sign either return.  Likewise, Ms. Lewis’ 2005 federal income tax return was

stamped with Espinal’s name and telephone number, but Espinal did not sign the return or

provide her identification number.  Espinal’s failures in this regard are subject to penalty under

26 U.S.C. § 6695(b) and (c).

18. Espinal told the Revenue Agent investigating the returns she prepared that she did

not sign the returns or provide her identification number, because she saw herself not as a paid

preparer but as “helping” her clients, who paid her $20 to $40 to prepare the returns.

MISREPRESENTATION OF EXPERIENCE OR EDUCATION

19. Upon information and belief, Espinal misrepresented her experience as an income

tax return preparer to her clients.  For example, Gil Betancourt testified that Espinal represented

to him that she had worked for the IRS for years.  Espinal, however, admitted during her audit

that her experience was gleaned from her work in the VITA program. 

FAILURE TO MAINTAIN AND/OR TURN OVER CLIENT LISTS

20. Pursuant to 26 U.S.C. 6107(b), a tax return preparer is required to keep copies of

her client lists (or alternatively copies of all the returns that she prepares), and she is further

required to provide this information to the IRS upon request.  26 U.S.C. 6695(d) imposes a

penalty for each failure to comply with this requirement unless it is shown that the failure was

due to reasonable cause and not due to willful neglect.  Although it was requested, Espinal failed

to provide this information to the IRS during the investigation of returns she prepared.  The only

information Espinal provided to the IRS was some client interview sheets, most of which relate

to the 2005 tax year. 
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DEFENDANT’S KNOWLEDGE OF THE ILLEGALITY OF HER SCHEME

21. Espinal know or should know that her conduct is illegal.

22. Espinal has sufficient educational and/or work experience to know of the illegality

of her tax preparation scheme.  She received an accounting degree and was a Certified Public

Accountant when she resided in Santo Domingo, Dominican Republic.  Upon moving to the

United States, Espinal received an accounting degree from St. Thomas University around 1990. 

She learned how to prepare tax returns through the Volunteer Income Tax Assistance Program,

commonly known as “VITA,” in 2000.  Additionally, Espinal has been actively preparing tax

returns since approximately 2000.

23. Despite knowledge of the illegality of her scheme, Espinal continues to engage in

a pattern of falsifying filing status and fabricating deductions and other information on tax

returns that she has prepared for clients.

HARM TO THE UNITED STATES

24. The variety of schemes used by Espinal harm the United States by unlawfully

understating her clients’ reported tax liabilities.

25. The magnitude of lost tax revenue caused by Espinal’s schemes is enormous.  The

Internal Revenue Service reviewed 82 returns prepared by Espinal for the 2005, 2006 and 2007

tax years.  Though these returns were not formally audited, they were reviewed for proposed

adjustments, as would be done in a formal audit.  The proposed adjustments for these returns

were based upon interviews with taxpayers, third party information and questionable items

observed on the face of the returns. Of the 82 returns reviewed, 80 claimed improper deductions

or credits, including 1) improper standard deduction due to false filing status, 2) inflated medical
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expenses, 3) inflated charitable contributions, 4) improper deductions for business expenses, and

5) errors in claiming the Earned Income Credit.  The average understatement was $4,518 per

return. 

26. It is estimated that Espinal cumulatively prepared at least 2,000 returns for the

2004 through 2007 tax years.  If a comparable percentage of other returns prepared by Espinal for

the 2004 through 2007 tax years reflect similar deficiencies to those that were reviewed, the tax

loss caused by Espinal’s fraudulent practices could equal or exceed $10 million.

27. Aside from the immense financial loss to the Government from Espinal’s

schemes, the IRS is also specifically harmed by her improper conduct because the IRS must

continue to devote scarce resources to detect and examine inaccurate returns prepared by Espinal

on behalf of her clients.  The IRS must also expend valuable resources in an attempt to assess

and collect the unpaid taxes from defendant’s clients.

28. In light of the large number of returns prepared by Espinal and high percentage

(97%) of audited returns that understated her clients’ tax liabilities, it is necessary to permanently

enjoin defendant from continuing to prepare tax returns.

COUNT I:  INJUNCTION UNDER § 7407

29. The United States incorporates by reference the allegations in paragraphs 1

through 29.

30. Section 7407 of the Internal Revenue Code authorizes a district court to enjoin

an income tax return preparer from, among other things:

a. engaging in conduct subject to penalty under 26 U.S.C. § 6694, which

penalizes a return preparer if the preparer prepares a return or claim for
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refund that includes an understatement of tax liability (a) due to an

unreasonable position which the return preparer knew or should have

known was unreasonable, or (b) in a willful attempt to understate the

liability or with a reckless or intentional disregard of rules and regulations; 

b. engaging in conduct subject to penalty under 26 U.S.C. § 6695(b), which

penalizes a return preparer who fails to sign a return;

c. engaging in conduct subject to penalty under 26 U.S.C. § 6695(c), which

penalizes a return preparer who fails to put her social security number or

other identifying number on a return;

d. engaging in conduct subject to penalty under 26 U.S.C. § 6695(d), which

penalizes a return preparer who fails to maintain copies of client lists or

alternatively of copies of the returns that she prepares; 

e. misrepresenting the tax return preparer’s experience or education as a tax

return preparer; and

f. engaging in any other conduct that substantially interferes with the proper

administration of the internal revenue laws.

31. In order for a court to issue such an injunction, the Court must find (1) that the tax

return preparer engaged in the prohibited conduct, and (2) that injunctive relief is appropriate to

prevent the recurrence of such conduct.

32. If the Court finds that the return preparer has continually and repeatedly engaged

in conduct prohibited by statute, and that a narrower injunction (i.e. against only the conduct)

would not be sufficient to prevent the person’s interference with the proper administration of the
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federal tax laws, the Court may permanently enjoin the person from acting as a tax return

preparer.

33. Espinal has repeatedly engaged in conduct subject to penalty under 26 U.S.C. §

6694 (a) and (b) by preparing income tax returns claiming unsubstantiated and fraudulent

deductions.  Espinal did so knowing the positions she took on the returns she prepared were

unreasonable and lacked substantial authority.  Moreover, Espinal fabricated or claimed

erroneous deductions in a willful attempt to understate tax liabilities on returns that she prepared.

34. Espinal has repeatedly engaged in conduct subject to penalty under 26 U.S.C. §

6695(b) and (c) by failing to put her name and social security or other identifying number on

returns that she prepared and failing to sign the returns.  

35. Espinal also engaged in conduct subject to penalty under 26 U.S.C. § 6695(d) by

failing to maintain copies of the returns that she prepared (or alternatively client lists) and/or

failing to provide this information to the IRS when requested. 

36. Espinal further engaged in fraudulent and deceptive conduct that substantially

interferes with the proper administration of the internal revenue laws, including misrepresenting

to clients that she used to work for the IRS. 

37. A narrow injunction only against Espinal’s conduct – as opposed to enjoining her

acting as a tax return preparer–would be insufficient to prevent her interference with the proper

administration of the federal tax laws.  Espinal has employed a number of schemes over an

extended period of time that result in understatement of income and income tax.  It is unlikely

that a narrow injunction could encompass all of those schemes.  Indeed, it is likely that the IRS

has not yet identified all of the schemes used by Espinal to understate income.  Moreover, failure
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to permanently enjoin Espinal will require the IRS spend additional resources to ferret out

additional schemes she devises in the future.  Therefore, only a permanent injunction is sufficient

to prevent future harm.

38. Espinal has repeatedly and continually engaged in conduct that violates sections

6694 and 6695, and is subject to injunction under 26 U.S.C. § 7407.   

39. Moreover, because Espinal has repeatedly and continually engaged in activities

subject to injunction under 26 U.S.C. § 7407(b)(1), and because a narrower injunction would not

be sufficient to prevent Espinal’s interference with the proper administration of the federal tax

laws, she should be permanently enjoined from acting as an income tax return preparer. 

COUNT II:  INJUNCTION UNDER IRC § 7408

40. The United States incorporates by reference the allegations in paragraphs 1

through 38.

41. Section 7408 of the Internal Revenue Code authorizes a district court to enjoin a

tax return preparer from, among other things, engaging in conduct subject to penalty under 26

U.S.C. § 6701 if injunctive relief is appropriate to prevent recurrence of the conduct.

42. 26 U.S.C. § 6701 penalizes a person for aiding or assisting in the preparation of a

return or other document which the person knows will result in an understatement of tax liability.

43. Espinal has engaged in conduct subject to penalty under 26 U.S.C. § 6701 by

preparing income tax returns claiming unsubstantiated and fraudulent deductions and credits. 

Espinal knows that these deductions do not have a realistic possibility of being sustained on the

merits if questioned by the IRS.
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44. Espinal’s actions described above fall within IRC § 7408(c)(1), and injunctive

relief is appropriate to prevent recurrence of this conduct.

45. Accordingly, Espinal should be permanently enjoined to prevent such conduct or

other conduct which substantially interferes with the enforcement and administration of the

internal revenue laws, pursuant to 26 U.S.C. § 7408(b).

COUNT III:  INJUNCTION UNDER IRC § 7402

46. The United States incorporates by reference the allegations in paragraphs 1

through 44. 

47. Section 7402(a) of the Internal Revenue Code authorizes a district court to issue

orders of injunction as may be necessary or appropriate for the enforcement of the internal

revenue laws. 

48. Espinal, through the conduct described above, has repeatedly and continually

engaged in conduct that interferes substantially with the administration and enforcement of the

internal revenue laws.  

49. If Espinal continues to engage in such conduct, her conduct will result in

irreparable harm to the United States, and the United States has no adequate remedy at law.  

50. Espinal’s conduct has caused and will continue to cause substantial tax losses to

the United States Treasury, much of which may be undiscovered and unrecoverable.  Unless

Espinal is enjoined, the IRS will have to devote substantial time and resources auditing her

clients individually to detect future returns prepared by defendant and understating the clients’

income.
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51. The detection and audit of erroneous refund claims filed by Espinal’s customers

will place a serious burden on IRS resources.

52. If Espinal is not enjoined, she will continue to engage in conduct subject to

penalty under 26 U.S.C. §§ 6694 and 6695, and that otherwise substantially interferes with the

enforcement and administration of the internal revenue laws.

53. The United States is entitled to injunctive relief under IRC § 7402(a) to prevent

such conduct.

   WHEREFORE, plaintiff United States of America prays for the following relief: 

A.  That the Court find that defendant Milagros Espinal continually and repeatedly

engaged in conduct subject to penalty under IRC §§ 6694, 6695 and 6701, or otherwise engaged

in conduct that interfered with the enforcement of the internal revenue laws.

B. That the Court find that injunctive relief against Espinal is appropriate pursuant to

IRC §§ 7402(a), 7407 and 7408 to prevent recurrence of that conduct;

C. That the Court enter a permanent injunction prohibiting Espinal from directly or

indirectly:

1. Preparing, filing or assisting in the preparation or filing of any federal
income tax return for any other person or entity; 

2. Causing or assisting other persons and entities to understate their federal
tax liabilities and avoid paying federal taxes;

3. Providing any tax advice or services for compensation, including
preparing or filing returns, providing consultative services, or representing
customers;

4. Engaging in any other activity subject to penalty under IRC §§ 6694, 6695
or 6701; or 
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5. Engaging in any conduct that interferes with the proper administration and
enforcement of the internal revenue laws through the preparation or filing
of false tax returns;

D.  That the Court order Espinal to turn over to counsel for the United States a list of

the names, addresses, e-mail addresses, phone numbers and Social Security numbers of all

customers for whom she has created, prepared or filed federal tax returns or whom she has

advised, counseled or otherwise assisted regarding the preparation of federal tax returns or

advised regarding their tax liability;

E. That the Court order Espinal to contact all persons or entities for whom she has

prepared, helped to prepare or file any federal tax returns or any other federal tax-related

document, and provide those persons or entities with a copy of the permanent injunction against

her by sending a letter and a copy of the permanent injunction by United States Mail, first-class

postage prepaid, to all clients who Expinal is able to contact;

F. That the Court order Espinal to publish once a week for four (4) consecutive

weeks in both the Miami Herald and el Nuevo Herald a copy of the permanent injunction in order

to inform all persons or entities for whom she has prepared, helped to prepare or file any federal

tax returns or any other federal tax-related document for whom Espinal neglected to retain

mailing addresses and therefore is unable to contact by United States mail;

G. That the Court order Espinal to complete the requirements listed in paragraphs D

and E within 20 days of the permanent injunction, and to complete the requirements listed in

paragraph F within 50 days, and order Espinal to file with the Court a certificate of compliance

with those requirements, signed under penalties of perjury, along with evidence of compliance,

within 52 days of the Court’s permanent injunction; 
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H. That the Court allow the United States full post-judgment discovery to monitor

compliance with the injunction;

I. That the Court retain jurisdiction over this action for purposes of implementing

and enforcing the final judgment and any additional orders necessary and appropriate to the

public interest; and 

J. That the Court grant the United States such other and further relief, including

costs, as the Court deems appropriate.

Respectfully submitted,

JOHN A. DICICCO
Acting Assistant Attorney General

By:   s/ Rachael Amy Kamons                          
RACHAEL AMY KAMONS
Trial Attorney, Tax Division
U.S. Department of Justice
Post Office Box 14198
Ben Franklin Station
Washington, D.C.  20044
Telephone: (202) 514-5890
Facsimile:  (202) 514-9868
Email: Rachael.A.Kamons@usdoj.gov

Of counsel:

WIFREDO A. FERRER
United States Attorney

Case 1:11-cv-20418-DLG   Document 1    Entered on FLSD Docket 02/07/2011   Page 16 of 16



OJS 44   (Rev. 12/07)                                     CIVIL COVER SHEET
The JS 44 civil cover sheet and the information contained herein neither replace nor supplement the filing and service of pleadings or other papers as required by law,  except as provided
by local rules of court.  This form, approved by the Judicial Conference of the United States in September 1974, is required for the use of the Clerk of Court for the purpose of initiating
the civil docket sheet.   (SEE INSTRUCTIONS ON THE REVERSE OF THE FORM.)

I. (a) PLAINTIFFS DEFENDANTS

(b)   County of Residence of First Listed Plaintiff County of Residence of First Listed Defendant
(EXCEPT IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES) (IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES ONLY)

NOTE:   IN LAND CONDEMNATION CASES, USE THE LOCATION OF THE
                LAND INVOLVED.

(c)   Attorney’s (Firm Name, Address, and Telephone Number)  Attorneys (If Known)

II.  BASIS OF JURISDICTION      (Place an “X” in One Box Only) III.  CITIZENSHIP OF PRINCIPAL PARTIES(Place an “X” in One Box for Plaintiff
(For Diversity Cases Only)                                                     and One Box for Defendant) 

’ 1   U.S. Government ’ 3 Federal Question                                                    PTF    DEF                                                       PTF    DEF
Plaintiff (U.S. Government Not a Party) Citizen of This State ’ 1 ’ 1 Incorporated or Principal Place ’ 4 ’ 4

of Business In This State

’ 2   U.S. Government ’ 4  Diversity Citizen of Another State ’ 2 ’  2 Incorporated and Principal Place ’ 5 ’  5
Defendant (Indicate Citizenship of Parties in Item III) of Business In Another State

Citizen or Subject of a ’ 3 ’  3 Foreign Nation ’ 6 ’  6
    Foreign Country

IV.  NATURE OF SUIT   (Place an “X” in One Box Only)
CONTRACT TORTS FORFEITURE/PENALTY BANKRUPTCY OTHER STATUTES

’ 110 Insurance      PERSONAL INJURY       PERSONAL INJURY ’ 610 Agriculture ’ 422 Appeal 28 USC 158 ’ 400 State Reapportionment
’ 120 Marine ’ 310 Airplane ’  362 Personal Injury - ’ 620 Other Food & Drug ’ 423 Withdrawal ’ 410 Antitrust
’ 130 Miller Act ’ 315 Airplane Product   Med. Malpractice ’ 625 Drug Related Seizure  28 USC 157 ’ 430 Banks and Banking
’ 140 Negotiable Instrument  Liability ’ 365 Personal Injury  -  of Property 21 USC 881 ’ 450 Commerce
’ 150 Recovery of Overpayment ’ 320 Assault, Libel &   Product Liability ’ 630 Liquor Laws PROPERTY RIGHTS ’ 460 Deportation

 & Enforcement of Judgment  Slander ’ 368 Asbestos Personal ’ 640 R.R. & Truck ’ 820 Copyrights ’ 470 Racketeer Influenced and
’ 151 Medicare Act ’ 330 Federal Employers’   Injury Product ’ 650 Airline Regs. ’ 830 Patent  Corrupt Organizations
’ 152 Recovery of Defaulted  Liability   Liability ’ 660 Occupational ’ 840 Trademark ’ 480 Consumer Credit

 Student Loans ’ 340 Marine   PERSONAL PROPERTY   Safety/Health ’ 490 Cable/Sat TV
 (Excl. Veterans) ’ 345 Marine Product ’ 370 Other Fraud ’ 690 Other ’ 810 Selective Service

’ 153 Recovery of Overpayment  Liability ’ 371 Truth in Lending LABOR SOCIAL SECURITY ’ 850 Securities/Commodities/
 of Veteran’s Benefits ’ 350 Motor Vehicle ’ 380 Other Personal ’ 710 Fair Labor Standards ’ 861 HIA (1395ff)  Exchange

’ 160 Stockholders’ Suits ’ 355 Motor Vehicle  Property Damage  Act ’ 862 Black Lung (923) ’ 875 Customer Challenge
’ 190 Other Contract  Product Liability ’ 385 Property Damage ’ 720 Labor/Mgmt. Relations ’ 863 DIWC/DIWW (405(g))  12 USC 3410
’ 195 Contract Product Liability ’ 360 Other Personal  Product Liability ’ 730 Labor/Mgmt.Reporting ’ 864 SSID Title XVI ’ 890 Other Statutory Actions
’ 196 Franchise  Injury       & Disclosure Act ’ 865 RSI (405(g)) ’ 891 Agricultural Acts

 REAL PROPERTY    CIVIL RIGHTS   PRISONER PETITIONS ’ 740 Railway Labor Act FEDERAL TAX SUITS ’ 892 Economic Stabilization Act
’ 210 Land Condemnation ’ 441 Voting ’ 510 Motions to Vacate ’ 790 Other Labor Litigation ’ 870 Taxes (U.S. Plaintiff ’ 893  Environmental Matters
’ 220 Foreclosure ’ 442 Employment  Sentence ’ 791 Empl. Ret. Inc.   or Defendant) ’ 894 Energy Allocation Act
’ 230 Rent Lease & Ejectment ’ 443 Housing/ Habeas Corpus:  Security Act ’ 871 IRS—Third Party ’ 895 Freedom of Information
’ 240 Torts to Land Accommodations ’ 530 General  26 USC 7609  Act
’ 245 Tort Product Liability ’ 444 Welfare ’ 535 Death Penalty IMMIGRATION ’ 900Appeal of Fee Determination
’ 290 All Other Real Property ’ 445 Amer. w/Disabilities - ’ 540 Mandamus & Other ’ 462 Naturalization Application  Under Equal Access

Employment ’ 550 Civil Rights ’ 463 Habeas Corpus -  to Justice
’ 446 Amer. w/Disabilities - ’ 555 Prison Condition Alien Detainee ’ 950 Constitutionality of

Other ’ 465 Other Immigration  State Statutes
’ 440 Other Civil Rights Actions

V.  ORIGIN
Transferred from
another district
(specify)

Appeal to District
Judge from
Magistrate
Judgment

   (Place an “X” in One Box Only)
’ 1 Original

Proceeding
’ 2 Removed from

State Court
’  3 Remanded from

Appellate Court
’ 4 Reinstated or

Reopened
’  5 ’  6 Multidistrict

Litigation
’ 7

VI.  CAUSE OF ACTION
Cite the U.S. Civil Statute under which you are filing  (Do not cite jurisdictional statutes unless diversity):
 
Brief description of cause:

VII.  REQUESTED IN
        COMPLAINT:

’ CHECK IF THIS IS A CLASS ACTION
UNDER F.R.C.P. 23

DEMAND $ CHECK YES only if demanded in complaint:
JURY DEMAND: ’ Yes ’ No

VIII.  RELATED CASE(S)
          IF ANY (See instructions): JUDGE DOCKET NUMBER

DATE SIGNATURE OF ATTORNEY OF RECORD

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY
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Authority For Civil Cover Sheet

The JS 44 civil cover sheet and the information contained herein neither replaces nor supplements the filings and service of pleading or other papers as required
by law, except as provided by local rules of court.  This form, approved by the Judicial Conference of the United States in September 1974, is required for the use
of the Clerk of Court for the purpose of initiating the civil docket sheet.  Consequently, a civil cover sheet is submitted to the Clerk of Court for each civil complaint
filed.  The attorney filing a case should complete the form as follows:

I. (a) Plaintiffs-Defendants.  Enter names (last, first, middle initial) of plaintiff and defendant.  If the plaintiff or defendant is a government agency, use only
the full name or standard abbreviations.  If the plaintiff or defendant is an official within a government agency, identify first the agency and then the official, giving
both name and title.

(b) County of Residence.  For each civil case filed, except U.S. plaintiff cases, enter the name of the county where the first listed plaintiff resides at the time
of filing.  In U.S. plaintiff cases, enter the name of the county in which the first listed defendant resides at the time of filing.  (NOTE: In land condemnation cases,
the county of residence of the “defendant” is the location of the tract of land involved.)

(c) Attorneys.  Enter the firm name, address, telephone number, and attorney of record.  If there are several attorneys, list them on an attachment, noting
in this section “(see attachment)”.

 II.  Jurisdiction.  The basis of jurisdiction is set forth under Rule 8(a), F.R.C.P., which requires that jurisdictions be shown in pleadings.  Place an “X” in one
of the boxes.  If there is more than one basis of jurisdiction, precedence is given in the order shown below.

United States plaintiff.  (1) Jurisdiction based on 28 U.S.C. 1345 and 1348.  Suits by agencies and officers of the United States are included here.

United States defendant.  (2) When the plaintiff is suing the United States, its officers or agencies, place an “X” in this box.

Federal question.  (3) This refers to suits under 28 U.S.C. 1331, where jurisdiction arises under the Constitution of the United States, an amendment to the
Constitution, an act of Congress or a treaty of the United States.  In cases where the U.S. is a party, the U.S. plaintiff or defendant code takes precedence, and box
1 or 2 should be marked.

Diversity of citizenship.  (4) This refers to suits under 28 U.S.C. 1332, where parties are citizens of different states.  When Box 4 is checked, the citizenship of the
different parties must be checked.  (See Section III below; federal question actions take precedence over diversity cases.)

III.  Residence (citizenship) of Principal Parties.  This section of the JS 44 is to be completed if diversity of citizenship was indicated above.  Mark this section
for each principal party.

IV. Nature of Suit.  Place an “X” in the appropriate box.  If the nature of suit cannot be determined, be sure the cause of action, in Section VI below, is sufficient
to enable the deputy clerk or the statistical clerks in the Administrative Office to determine the nature of suit.  If the cause fits more than one nature of suit, select
the most definitive.

V.  Origin.  Place an “X” in one of the seven boxes.
Original Proceedings.  (1) Cases which originate in the United States district courts.

Removed from State Court.  (2) Proceedings initiated in state courts may be removed to the district courts under Title 28 U.S.C., Section 1441.  When the petition
for removal is granted, check this box.

Remanded from Appellate Court.  (3) Check this box for cases remanded to the district court for further action.  Use the date of remand as the filing date.

Reinstated or Reopened.  (4) Check this box for cases reinstated or reopened in the district court.  Use the reopening date as the filing date.

Transferred from Another District.  (5) For cases transferred under Title 28 U.S.C. Section 1404(a).  Do not use this for within district transfers or multidistrict
litigation transfers.

Multidistrict Litigation.  (6) Check this box when a multidistrict case is transferred into the district under authority of Title 28 U.S.C. Section 1407.  When this box
is checked, do not check (5) above.

Appeal to District Judge from Magistrate Judgment.  (7) Check this box for an appeal from a magistrate judge’s decision.

VI. Cause of Action.  Report the civil statute directly related to the cause of action and give a brief description of the cause.  Do not cite jurisdictional statutes
unless diversity. Example: U.S. Civil Statute: 47 USC 553

Brief Description: Unauthorized reception of cable service

VII. Requested in Complaint.  Class Action.  Place an “X” in this box if you are filing a class action under Rule 23, F.R.Cv.P.
Demand.  In this space enter the dollar amount (in thousands of dollars) being demanded or indicate other demand such as a preliminary injunction.
Jury Demand.  Check the appropriate box to indicate whether or not a jury is being demanded.

VIII. Related Cases.  This section of the JS 44 is used to reference related pending cases if any.  If there are related pending cases, insert the docket numbers
and the corresponding judge names for such cases.

Date and Attorney Signature.  Date and sign the civil cover sheet.
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1"1 TIlL U\ITFD STA ns DISTRICT COLIn FOR TilL
Sm:TIII.Rr\ DlSTRICT 01 I LORIDA

\lIA\ll DlVISIO\J

CIVil. ACTION NO.

LNlTElJ STATI'.S OF A\lFRIC;\.

I'laintllL

\.

\llL\CJROS FSPI\J/\L,

DelCndanL

IPROPOSEDI CO,\SEYI JUIlG\IE'\T OF PER\IA'\EYII'JL'ICTlO'\
AGAI'IST \lILAGROS ESPI'AL

I'laintilL the Lnited States ol Amcrica, has lilcd a complaint seektng a perinanent

iIlJunC110ii against defendant !\lilagros LspinaL \vho admits that the Court has jurisdiction hut

docs not admit or deii).' any' olihl' other allegations in the complaint. Lspinal consents to the

entry' of this permanent injunction uiider:26 L.S.C. ~~ 7402(a), 7407 and 74m.;. ¡'.spinal turther

\Vaives an:y right she may' hU\'t to appeal from this penn anent injunction. The parties agree that

entry olthis rKTinancnt injunction neither precludes the Internal Revenue SlTVicc fì"Oll assessing

penalties against Espinal lor asserted violations of the Interial Revenue Code nor precludes

Lspinal fì-oin contesting any such penalties.

Accordingly. it is ORDERED, ADJLDGFD. and DFCRHcD that:

1. rhis Court has JUllsdiction olthis action pursuant 10 2N L,S.C, ~~ 1340. 1.ì4S and

26 L.S.c ~~ 7402(a), 7407 and 740K.

2. ¡-.spinaL or an)' other person working in concert or participation with her directly

or indirectly, IS enioined undcr 26 USe. ~~ 7402(a). 7407 and 740K from:
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A. preparing or assisting in the preparation oran)' other person's 1'ederal

income tax returns and other related documents and forms for others:

B. preparing or assisting in the preparation or federal tax n:lurns ihat she

knows \vill n:sult in the understatement oran)' tax liability or ihc

overstatement of f~deral tax rcfunds:

C Providing any' tax advicc or services for coinpcrlsation. lIcluding

pn:paring or liiing rcturns, providing consultatl\c serviccs, or represenlmg

customers:

D. Engaging in any' other activity subject to penaliy under 26 L.S.C. ~~ 66\)4,

6695 or 6701: or

L Lngaging in any conduct that lItcriCres with the proper administration and

enCorctment ofthc internal re\cnue la\vs.

J. EsplIalls ordercd, at her o\vn expensc, to send by US lTiail a copy olthe final

injunction entered against hcr iii this action to each person 1'or \vhoni she, or any"onc at hl'

direction and cmplo)', prcparcd fedcral income tax returns or an)' othcr fedcral tax 1'onns ajkr

.lJnuary I. 2005. and for \vhom shc has a mailing address. Espinal is rurther ordcrcd, at her own

cxpcnse, to publish a copy orthc Jinal in.Jun~~ion entered against her in this action in the \liami

Ilcrald and el i\ue,o Herald I,)r l,)ur (4) consecuti'e weeks. bpinal shall prmide to the Lnited

States a certilieate of compliance. signed under penalty of perjury. within Ii liy-two (52) days ol

entry' nlthis order.

4. EspinaL. and anyone who has prcpared returns at her direction or in hcr cmploy', is

ordcred to tum over to the United Staks \vithin Jitty-two ()2) days from the i'ntry' olthis order

:!
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any retul1, or claims teil' relund that she prepared IÖr customers atier January 1,2005 that she has

not provickd to the Internal Rc-venue Sen.'ice.

). LspinaL and any'one \\'ho h;:is pn:parcd returns at her dircction or in her employ', is

ordered to turn over to the L initcd States \vitliin fífty-tv.,'o (52) day's lrOlIl the entry' olthis order

any identitYing iifonnation including. but not limited to, name. address, telephone number. t-

mail address, social security' number or other taxpayer identification number of cust01lLTS for

whim she prepared returns aner january i, 1005 that she has not providcd to the Intcn1aì

Revenue Service.

6, Espinalis ordered to provide the Lniicd States with a swoni statement cvidêJlcing

hlT compliance with the loregoing directives \vithin Ii Oy-two (.52) days of entry' of this olckr.

7. Espinal is ordered to keep records of her compliance with the foregoing directives.

\vhich inay he produced to the Courl, ilrequestcd_ or to the United Stales pursuant to paragraph

X. helim.

K. The Liiitcd States is authorized to lllOllitor Fspinals compliance \vith this

injunction. and to engagc in post-Judgment disco\"~ry in accordanC\.' \vith thc I'cderal Ruks of

Civil Procedure.

9. All notice' to the Liiiied States shall he dcli\cred 0) LS Mail to Rachacl Aim

Kal1l011S at thc address listed helow.

- 3 -

Case 1:11-cv-20418-DLG   Document 1-2    Entered on FLSD Docket 02/07/2011   Page 3 of 4



DC)'\!: Al\D ORDER II) in \lianii. Florida on

INI lID ST'\ TES l)SmIC I .lUX;):
i\grcc(l:

Lor plainii IT Lnited States of America: For delcndant \lllagros !:pinaL

.IIITRLY ll. SLO\iL\N
l;iiitcd Stales i\ttorncy 7Jr~

\llLA(;¡/:OS ¡'SPINAL
400R West i Oth Court.
Hial0h. FL 330i::i
!Jro sc

J IF~"IVV-,
R/\e! IM-.1. A\lY KA:vl0NS
lrial Attorney, Tax Division
lJ.S. Department of Justice
Post Oltce Box 14 I '!X
Hen Franklin Station
Washington. DC 20044
Telephone: (202) 514-5X'!O

i-aesiniilc (202) 514-'!XIiR

Lmail: Rachacl.A.Kanioli'-/(l Llsdoj.go\

- 4-
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